ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
LEQ SLATI VE BUDGET AND AUDI T COW TTEE
Decenber 2, 2014
1:03 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Chair

Senator dick Bishop

Senator Cathy G essel

Representati ve Andy Josephson

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy (via tel econference)(alternate)

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative M ke Hawker, Vice Chair
Senat or Kevin Meyer

Senat or Donal d O son

Representative Al an Austerman

Represent ati ve Bob Herron

Representative Kurt O son

Representative Scott Kawasaki (alternate)
Representative Bill Stoltze (alternate)

OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representative Les Gara

COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW S) CAELUS ENERGY ROYALTY RATE MODI FI CATI ON
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REQ STER

J. PATRI CK FOLEY, Senior Vice President

Cael us Energy

Al aska Operations

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions regarding

t he background of Caelus Energy and devel opnment plans within the
Qoogur uk Uni t.

BUD COW TTEE -1- Decenber 2, 2014



W LLI AM BARRON, Director

Central O fice

Division of Gl & Gas

Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions regarding
DNR s background and royalty rate nodification calculations and
negoti ati ons with Cael us Energy.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1: 03: 51 PM

CHAI R ANNA MACKINNON called the Legislative Budget and Audit
Committee neeting to order at 1:01 p.m Senators Bi shop,
G essel, and MacKi nnon, Representative Josephson, and Senator
Dunl eavy (alternate)(via teleconference) were present at the
call to order. Representative Les Gara was al so present.

OVERVI EWS): CAELUS ENERGY ROYALTY RATE MODI FI CATI ON
APPLI CATI ON

1: 04: 16 PM

CHAI R MACKI NNON announced that the only order of business would
be an overview of the recent prelimnary determnation by the
Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR) regarding the royalty rate
nodi fication application by Caelus Energy (Caelus). She
continued that the commttee would hear an overview of the
project from Caelus followed by an overview of the process by
DNR.

1: 04: 57 PM

J. PATRICK FOLEY, Senior Vice President, Caelus Energy, Al aska
Operations, began by discussing the application for royalty
nodi fication wthin the Oooguruk Unit on the Torok Interval,
Nuna Devel opnent Project (Nuna). M. Foley inforned the
commttee he has had extensive experience working in Al aska, had
assisted in starting up the Pioneer Natural Resources Conpany in
Al aska (Pioneer), and when he left after 10-years was president
of the Al aska organization. He introduced Matt Musselman (via
tel econference) as vice president of Caelus Energy and advised
M. Muissel man manages the business devel opnent group and was
closely involved in the royalty nodification application.

BUD COW TTEE -2- Decenber 2, 2014



1: 07: 25 PM

MR. FOLEY stated that Caelus Energy is a privately held
exploration and production conpany established in 2011 by Jim

Musselman and in April 2014, Caelus acquired all of Pioneer
Al aska's assets via a stock purchase. He pointed out that
Caelus enploys 80 Alaska resident enployees and seasonally
enpl oys contract workers. Al t hough, he explained, this season
due to shooting two seismc 3D prograns Nuna will enploy over
500 contract enpl oyees. In Al aska, Pioneer spent $2 billion in
capital and expenses and nade paynents to the state in the form
of royalty and ad val orem taxes of approximately $100 mllion.
1:09: 33 PM

MR. FOLEY noted that funding in Caelus is unique in that it has
a large private equity funder, Apollo d obal Mnagenent that has

pledged $1 billion in capital to assist in developing the
Qooguruk Drill Site (0ODS), which includes Nuna and other
expl oration opportunities. Currently, he explained, Caelus has

a $300 mllion second lien loan and additional credit facility
is available if nore noney is necessary. He expressed that the
2015 Oooguruk capital budget is approximately $500 mllion and
is split fifty-fifty between the ODS devel opment project and the

subj ect project, Nuna. He assured the conmittee that Caelus
will be careful stewards of the environnent and resources while
at the sane tinme "pace is everything" and it will nove forward
in a responsible manner. The Pioneer Oooguruk project, from
first lease to first oil was six-years which, he expressed, is
unprecedented and he expects from Caelus's April [ 2014]
acquisition until first oil wll be a little nore than two-
years.

1:12: 22 PM

MR. FOLEY agreed wth Senator Bishop that Pioneer had an
excellent relationship with the Native conmunity on the North
Slope and that the relationship did transfer over as the sane
Pi oneer enpl oyees transferred to Cael us.

1:12: 40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA commented that in 2010 Pioneer began working
on exploration and devel opnment wells under Alaska's Cear and
Equi t abl e Share (ACES). In Novenber 2013, Cael us purchased the
| ease and, he noted that a statement was made that it expected

BUD COWM TTEE - 3- Decenber 2, 2014



to begin work inmediately without royalty relief. He questioned
why Caelus is currently requesting royalty relief for a field it
pur chased and had expected to begin work i nmediately.

1:13:17 PM

MR. FOLEY responded that in 2002 Pioneer began its business in
the state. He remarked that the Nuna project was in 2010 and
during that period of tinme Pioneer had | ost enthusiasmin Al aska
as it found trenendous success in the Lower 48 and was focusing
100 percent of its capital on devel oping those assets. In the
surmer of 2013 Pioneer began the process of selling its assets
to Caelus and closed on April 15, 2014, he explained
Approxi mately Decenber [2013] and January [2014] Caelus began
prelimnary conversations with the state regarding "if" it buys
this asset and "if" it develops Nuna what could be done to
i nprove the economc terms, he remarked.

1:14: 53 PM

MR. FOLEY answered in the affirnmative to Representative Gara's
question that no one had promsed royalty relief when Caelus
purchased the field.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked if the $1 billion commtnent regarding
Apoll o d obal Managenent (Apollo) is contingent upon a royalty
di scussi on or nodification.

MR. FOLEY answered that the financial commtment Apollo nade is
specifically for the Nuna project. He expl ained that Caelus
obt ai ned contingent sanction approval and Apollo will fund the
project subject to the finalization of royalty nodification.

1:15:59 PM

CHAI R MACKI NNON requested M. Foley to depict the information
Caelus had at the time of acquisition and the status of what was
known about the find itself.

1:16: 20 PM

MR. FOLEY asked that he be allowed to proceed through the
overview in order that the answer to Chair McKi nnon's question

may becone cl ear.

1:16: 30 PM

BUD COW TTEE - 4- Decenber 2, 2014



MR. FOLEY referred to slide 3 of his handout "Caelus Energy
Al aska, Legislative Budget and Audit, Nuna Devel opnent & Royalty
Modi fication and Overview. " He advised it denonstrates that
Cael us and many other conpanies are the type of conpanies the
state would like to continue to do business in Alaska. He noted
that approximately two weeks ago, Caelus was the apparent high
bi dder on 323,000 acres of |easehold and assuned all of the
| eases would be issued. He explained the map represents 126
tracks and the total |ease bonus that will be paid by Caelus for
t hese blocks is $15 million. He highlighted that prior to the
| ease sale, Caelus nmade a commtnent to a 3D geophysical conpany
to acquire a new high resolution 3D seismc program which wll
be shot this winter within the area depicted on the map.

1:18: 02 PM

MR. FOLEY turned to slide 4 and advised the black outline
represents | eases owned by Caelus within the Oooguruk Unit which
has two separate devel opnents: the existing off-shore [Oooguruk
Drill Site] island, and the subject project, Nuna. Phase 1 is
shown by the area outlined in brown where there are two drill
sites that ultimately may be associated with the Nuna project.
The Oooguruk Drill Site (ODS) makes production from the Nuigsut,
Kuparuk River Unit (Kuparuk) and Torok wth the estimted
recoverable reserves from the ODS island being roughly 100
mllion barrels. He stated his working interest partner at
Qooguruk is Eni with a 30 percent interest and Caelus has the
remai ning 70 percent. He pointed out that for Nuna, Eni has
gone non-consent so all of the working interest and all of the
nmoni es are spent exclusively by Caelus. He advised that ODS
currently produces approximately 13,000 barrels per day of gross
production with a 2015 capital budget of approximately $250
mllion. He noted that the island has 48 well slots wth 36
slots used, leaving 12 wells yet to be drilled. He noted there
is the possibility of a project to expand the island by adding a
few acres of gravel to grow the well bay thereby allowi ng for 12
additional wells, with a potential of 24 new wells from ODS.

1: 20: 21 PM

MR. FOLEY addressed the Nuna Project and reiterated it is within
the Oooguruk Unit and exclusively focused on the Torok Interval.
He explained that Phase 1 has a single drill site (NDS1), wth
road systemto put in place connecting back to the Kuparuk River
Unit Palm 3S drill site, and flow lines connecting back to the
Qooguruk tie-in pad (OTP). He pointed out that Caelus has no
processing in its unit and therefore made contractual

BUD COWM TTEE -5- Decenber 2, 2014



arrangenents with the Kuparuk River Unit (KRU) owners to process
on its behalf. M. Foley said that Caelus is the sole true
third-party facility sharing arrangenent anywhere on the North
Slope, and that arrangenment wll continue for Nuna. He
expl ai ned that Nuna started by drilling three wells from the ODS
| sl and, two producers and one injector, which did denonstrate
that Caelus could have a successful water fl ood. Subsequent |y,
it drilled two appraiser wells, NDS1 and NDS2, which were
fracture stinul at ed, producti on t est ed, and fl owed at
approximately 2500 barrels of oil per day. He estimates that
the Nuna resource has recoverable reserves in the range of 50
mllion to 100 mllion barrels and described Phase 1 as 30
devel opnment wel | s.

1:22:26 PM

MR. FOLEY referred to slide 5 and described it as roadside
geol ogy denonstrating a |amnated reservoir, of which Nuna is

very simlar. He explained that slide 6 is a core photograph
from the 1998 ARCO Kalubik #2 well, wherein the yellow area
represents oil sections, with the black areas being shale. He

added that the challenge with Nuna, wunlike the Kuparuk and
| vishak, is that there are lam nated | ayers of small portions of
sand, shale, sand, shale which continues for as nuch as 250
feet. The reservoir has |ow perneability and |ow porosity and
the only process to renove the oil is by fracture stinulation
treatments and, he remarked, Caelus intends to fracture both the
producer and injection wells which is a technique no other
reservoir on the North Sl ope has had to enpl oy.

1: 25: 08 PM

MR. FOLEY referred to slide 7 and noted that on July 1, 2014,
Caelus submtted a final, formal, and conplete application. In
Cct ober 2014, DNR issued its prelimnary finding and
determnation which is now in a period of public coment, he
sai d. He explained that Caelus requested a nodification of
royalty at five percent, which is the statutory floor the state
can grant but the [prelimnary finding and] determnation

mai nt ai ned base royalties at five percent until a gross revenue
target of $1.25 billion is received. He stated that a
significant anount of Jjobs wll be created and additional
revenue would flow to the state later in the project's life.

M. Foley said that another of the state's criteria when
considering any nodification is the concept that if the state
helps on the front end, how will the parties share on the up
si de. He stated that 75 percent of |eases in the Nuna

BUD COWM TTEE - 6- Decenber 2, 2014



devel opnent are burdened by a one-eighth [royalty] plus a 30
percent net profit share. Consequently, he offered, when this
project goes forward and reaches econom c payout over and above
all of the other typical fiscal benefits to the state, the state
will also have a 30 percent net profit share interest in
approximately 75 percent of the Nuna resources. Absent royalty
nodi fication, he remarked, there is no doubt this project my

still go forward but it wll be delayed an unknown anount of
time.
1: 28: 40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA quiered that when a state lease is bid,
whether the lease terns include 12 percent royalty plus 30
percent |ease profit.

MR. FOLEY responded in the affirmative.
1:29: 08 PM

MR. FOLEY offered that the state concluded in its prelimnary
finding that the cost of a project delay of several years
exceeds the loss or dimnishment in revenue the state forgoes as
a result of the royalty nodification

1:29: 37 PM

SENATOR DUNLEAVY remarked that the issues were known when Cael us
bid upon the lease and questioned the thinking behind that
action as now Caelus is requesting royalty nodification.

MR. FOLEY responded that he believes that the | eases burdened by
one-eighth [royalty] and 30 percent net profit were originally
issued to a group of conpanies in the early 1980's, and
ConocoPhillips Alaska and other parties attenpted devel opnent
and determ ned those | eases were not worthy of their investnent.
In 2004, those conpanies made a deal assigning the leases to
Pi oneer that had procured them subject to the existing |ease
terns, he remarked.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY surm sed that [ Pi oneer] understood the
conditions of the |ease.

MR. FOLEY agreed, and then pointed out that when Pioneer

devel oped Oooguruk it was granted royalty nodification on the
Kupar uk and Nui gsut Formation within the Oooguruk Unit.

BUD COW TTEE -7- Decenber 2, 2014



1: 31:42 PM

MR. FOLEY brought to the commttee's attention the state's
crafted decision holding Caelus's feet to the "fire" as far as
devel opment obligation and, he noted that the state could agree
to a royalty nodification wth a commtnment of diligent
devel opnent . The required terns include: a firm and final
sanctioning decision by Decenber 31, 2014; a spend cal endar
requi renent that Caelus nust begin its capital investnent of
building the facilities by March 31, 2017; and sustained
commer ci al production from Nuna by March 2017, he advi sed.

1: 32: 42 PM

MR. FOLEY described slide 8 as Nuna's pictorial tineline. He
expl ained that assuming there is an ultimate favorable royalty
nmodi fication determnation, Caelus wll proceed "full speed
ahead" to install gravel for a road system in a single dril

site pad and vertical support nenbers (VSMs) installed in
February 2015. He further explained that during the w nter of

2016, Caelus will install all surface facilities and flow lines,
and a drilling rig noved onto location wth devel opnment
beginning later in 2016. He noted that Caelus is targeting
first oil in the third quarter of 2016 and anticipates that

initial production rates will be in the 5 000 to 10,000 barrel a
day range with its peak at 15,000 to 20,000 plus barrels a day
range and, he anticipates the project wll flow until
approxi mately 2045. For the purposes of this analysis, assum ng
oil prices are simlar to today, and the rate profile is simlar
to what Caelus believes, the project should reach the $1.25
billion net revenue target in approxi mately 2020, he subm tted.

1: 34: 50 PM

MR. FOLEY responded to Representative Gara that [slide] 8
represents the life of the project extending to 2045.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noted that roughly $1.4 billion in royalties
paid by Nuna is less than $50 mllion per year.

VR. FOLEY assuned Representative Gara's calculations were
correct.

1: 35: 28 PM

MR. FOLEY described slide 9 as depicting benefits the state w |
receive in exchange for a nodification of royalty and in

BUD COWM TTEE - 8- Decenber 2, 2014



ensuring the project noves forward. He remarked that hundreds
of jobs wll be created, with production of approximtely 50
mllion to 100 mllion barrels of oil, and a capital investnent
of $1.3 billion in Phase 1. He further remarked that when
Caelus reviews its econom c nodel forecast of the ultinmate noney
flowwng to the state in the form of royalties, production tax,
ad valorem tax, and net profit share leases it is approximtely
$1 billion to $1.7 billion over the entire life of the project.
At the end of the devel opnent [phase] Caelus has agreed to share
any findings regarding its costs, devel opnent schene, geol ogy,
all of the techniques enployed to mneximze production, and
| essons learned with the state, the industry, and other North
Sl ope devel opers, he stated.

1: 37: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noted that Pioneer noved forward wth
devel opnment wells and exploration wells in 2011, believing this
was a producible project under Alaska's Clear and Equitable
Share (ACES) Act and further noted that this field was purchased
before any promse of royalty nodification. He stated that
according to Dr. Scott CGoldsmith, fields like Nuna that qualify
for the lower Goss Value Reduction (GVR) tax rate produce for
the state somewhere between a near zero or negative net present
value just for the production tax under SB 21. Yet currently,
he reiterated, the legislature is reviewing a royalty relief
request of over 70 percent for at least a portion of the
proj ect. He summari zed that the conpany commtted to buy [the
| eases] before it received royalty relief, Pioneer advertised it
as a project it would nove forward, and perforned devel opnent
and exploration wells. He said that Caelus is paying very
little production tax, something worth a near zero or negative
present value to the state, and in addition is requesting a
royalty reduction of over 70 percent. Representative Gara
guestioned how those facts nmade a conpelling case for [royalty
nodi fi cation].

1: 39: 41 PM

MR. FOLEY responded that the royalty reduction would be at 70
percent up until the $1.25 billion Goss Revenue Value [GRT] is
achieved and it then reverts back to the existing rates. He
of fered that Pioneer had a water flood project at the island to
denonstrate that oil could flow from the Torok and could inject
water into the Torok reservoir. Wth that information, Pioneer
made the decision to drill two exploration wells, Nunal and
Nuna2, which represented approximately $100 nmillion in total

BUD COWM TTEE -9- Decenber 2, 2014



capital for the drilling of the two wells. Subsequent |y,
Pioneer cane to the <conclusion that developnent mght be
possi ble but determned not to continue its business in Al aska
and sold all of its assets to Cael us. Therefore, when Cael us
acquired all of Pioneer's assets it acquired a piece of which is
the Nuna project. He reiterated that Nuna, wth royalty
nodi fication, will be sanctioned and will go forward in the tine
tabl e previously discussed.

1: 41: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA remarked that the state has a tax structure
wherein the state pays back credits and offers deductions. He
guestioned the total amunt of dollars the state has paid to
Pioneer and Caelus in terms of tax credits and deductions to
hel p nove this field forward.

MR. FOLEY replied that he did not have the numbers with him but
woul d provide themto the conmttee.

1: 42: 24 PM

CHAIR MACKINNON renminded the conmttee that this is a
prelimnary finding and Governor Bill Walker will make the final
determ nation on this project.

1: 43: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON requested a brief description of the
process Caelus performed with DNR to evaluate, as required by
the royalty nodification statute, the reasonable profits that
conparable fields should receive and why this deal may be
underneat h that threshol d.

MR. FOLEY responded that the description nay be answered within
DNR s overvi ew.

1:44: 04 PM

SENATOR DUNLEAVY qui ered whether the 30 percent net profits tax
remains in full force throughout the duration of the project,
and to confirmit is not part of the nodification.

MR. FOLEY responded that the lease ternms remain in full force

and effect for so long as the lease remains in effect, and
further responded that "No," the net profit share interest is

BUD COWM TTEE - 10- Decenber 2, 2014



not affected in any way shape or form by the granting of the
royalty nodification

1:44:57 PM

WLLI AM BARRON, Director, Central Ofice, Dvision of Ol & Gas,
Department of Natural Resources, noted the transfer of assets
from Pioneer to Caelus started in October 2013, wth the
transferred assets being finalized in June 2014. He descri bed
the Nuna devel opnent as an onshore developnment and that the
current of fshore devel opnent (ODS) is an island with the process
being through the Kuparuk field. He stated that prior to
subm ssion of a formal application nost of the discussions,
economc reviews and analysis of Caelus and Pioneer, from
Cctober 2013 to date, were associated with the acquisition of
Pioneer's assets by Caelus. He stated that relative to economc
nmodel i ng and understandi ng the estimted cost of abandonnent and

dismantling, renoval, and restoration (DR&R) obligations, a
sinking fund and bondi ng nechanism was established relative to
that function which has now been enployed at the transfer. He

explained that due to DNR s history with Pioneer and ODS the
parties were able to nove quickly on the Caelus July 1, [2014]
application and consequently on Cctober 28, 2014, DNR issued its
prelimnary finding. On Novenber 7, 2014, DNR issued the
official announcenent through the public information office
which triggered the 30-day public conment period. He determ ned
that due to an error the citizens of Alaska received
approximately 10 extra days to look at the docunent as it was
first posted on the web site of the Division of G| & Gas.

1:49: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noted that the press release did not nention
the Nuna Developnent in its title or within its first seven to
ei ght paragraphs, but was nentioned at the end of the page and
slipped by "all of us."

MR. BARRON characterized it as a general press release which

di scussed positive oil and gas activities associated wth
several independent operators, and H I Corp and Caelus were
ment i oned.
1:50: 26 PM

MR. BARRON expl ai ned [since 1996] DNR received approximtely six
royalty nodification applications [slide 3] with sone wthdrawn
or denied, and the Pioneer Oooguruk Drill Site application being

BUD COWM TTEE -11- Decenber 2, 2014



approved in 2005. Currently, under [DNR s] prelimnary findings
the Nuna Torok developnent would be granted a royalty
[modification] down to five percent until the $1.25 billion
gross revenue target is acconplished. He described gross
production as neasured from the lease and a fixed well head
deduction of six percent based on the back-out paynent for
processi ng the product through Kuparuk. He noted it is one of
the operating costs DNR allowed in terns of the net back
prici ng. The goal of the Dvision of Gl & Gas (O&) was to
structure this as straight up gross revenue and al nost straight
value of the product, he explained. Cael us does not have
i nfluence over world product price with some influence over rate
but, he pointed out that is nore of a reservoir issue than a
conpl etion issue and described conpletion technol ogies and high
dollar <costs as "interesting." The Departnment of Natural
Resources desired the developnment to nove forward but, he
remarked, this was not an open ended royalty nodification in
that there had to be clear authorizations of expenditures with a
timeline depicting that both the installation of the facilities
being well on its way and production starting in 2017. He added
that these are hard tinmelines offering the state protection
because in the event these benchmarks are not net the royalty
nodi fication is rescinded. He opined this puts the burden of
operatorship and responsible developnent on a tineline to the
conpany and renoves the obligation fromthe state.

1: 54: 08 PM

He referred to the technol ogy sharing piece M. Foley nentioned
and reiterated that wthin 24 nonths of initial production
Caelus is required to issue Society of Petroleum Engineering
(SPE) standard technical docunents and publications discussing
and denonstrating Caelus's performance. These docunents include
[but are not limted to]: cost structure, the size and type of
fracture technol ogies enployed, drilling techniques, and ful
open support of all technology transferred to the [public] in an
accel erated manner for the other players. He offered that it
takes tinme, energy, and noney to "crack the nut" on how to get
sone of the reservoirs producing and stated this is a critica
piece in DNR s proposal and negoti ati ons.

1:55: 55 PM

SENATOR d ESSEL questioned how M. Barron decided that $1.25
billion was the threshold for going back to full royalty.

BUD COWM TTEE -12- Decenber 2, 2014



MR. BARRON responded that the question would be answered [within
his overview] .

MR. BARRON responded to Senator G essel in the affirnmative that
the idea of sharing technology is a new concept that has not
been included in other royalty relief.

1: 56: 25 PM

MR. BARRON pointed out that Caelus's original request was a five
percent royalty until its activities associated with the Torok
at ODS and Nuna had paid out, and subsequent to that payout
there would be a slight increase in royalties over a three-year
timeframe and on the fourth anniversary full royalty would be in
place for all areas. The Department of Natural Resources had
the opportunity to ask the conpany a great deal of questions
that typically conpanies do not |ike to answer when asking for
royalty nodification, he said. He nentioned a discussion
regarding sharing the information included in the royalty
nodi fication application wth the general public and stated much
of that information is inter-twined with economc and geol ogic
information which is sensitive and confidential to Caelus. He
advised he is statutorily obligated to keep the information
confidential .

1:58: 41 PM

MR. BARRON expressed that it was necessary DNR understood how
the conmpany could determne that this was an uneconom c project
or that the project probably would not go forward w thout
royalty nodification. Subsequent to a review, DNR recognized
that the conpany was |looking at only proven reserves, better
known in the industry as one "P," basically a 90 percent chance
nore reserves would be recovered, he stated. Cael us determ ned
a 10 percent slice of recovery of reserves, which is a
conservative prospective and also possibly fair in attenpting to
stri ke a bal ance between analysis and critique, he remarked. He
characterized the structure of the Torok as difficult to produce
and reasoned that those calculations were fair due to the

ability to drill horizontally and fracture a producer being one
thing, yet having to do that wth injectors is unique and
costly. Plus, he noted, it is unknown if there will be pressure
mai nt enance and sweep from a water flood in this type of
formation. The efficiency of that sweep and the pressure
support resulting from the water is yet to be determ ned which
clouds the two "P' and three "P' reserves, he explained. He

noted that the conmpany had a price structure that floated for

BUD COWM TTEE - 13- Decenber 2, 2014



the first couple of years and then was fixed for all years out
at the sane price. At the tinme, DNR believed it was
conservative but currently (after a few nonths) believes it is
radi cal l y high, he stated.

2:00: 50 PM

MR. BARRON remarked that the conpany had a fixed opex and fixed
capex. At the time DNR believed it was a conservative
determnistic nodel with the results of the conpany's econom cs
being a low rate of return before federal inconme tax. He

pointed out that DNR does not use determnistic values so it
"l eaned” into Caelus and requested its tw "P' and three "P."
He advised that 1in the engineering world for reservoir
management, reservoir reserves are wusually described in |og
normal distribution which neans it is not a normal curve, it is
a log normal [curve]. Cael us provided the conpany's interna

and third party consultant docunents and DNR established a |og
normal distribution for reserves and advised that some risk was
added given the type of reservoir it was and the unknown
characteristics the conpany may encounter. The Departnent of
Natural Resources did the same thing with oil price and costs.
He remarked that DNR advised the conmpany that it had given DNR a
fixed cost for capital and a fixed cost for operating expenses,

and to now provide a range. Subsequently, DNR backtracked and
val idated sone of the nunbers in terns of highs and |ows and
built distributions around those figures as well. He noted that
the statute is for the prolonged life of the Torok so DNR
reviewed the Nuna plus the ODS, and the ODS only, and cal cul ated
a subtraction of the two to determne the value of the Nuna
portion of the Torok. He explained that DRN calculates its
econonm cs after federal inconme tax (AFIT) and ran this nodel

numer ous tines.

2:03:41 PM

MR. BARRON responded to Senator Dunleavy that the SPCE standard
of the three "P'" is that "one P is proven reserves, tw P are

probable reserves, and three P is possible reserves.” He
explained that as the nunber of the "P' gets bigger, the
confidence there wll be a recovery of the reserves 1is

di m ni shed.
2:04: 28 PM

MR. BARRON referred to slide 8 and described it as a price
forecast and an exanple of the division's distribution. He

BUD COWM TTEE -14- Decenber 2, 2014



advi sed that when running the nodels at the tinme of the analysis
DNR ranged it from $50-$130 per barrel and built a nornal
di stribution around those figures with a nean at that tine being
$90 [per barrel].

2:05: 12 PM

MR. BARRON responded to Representative Gara that the red area on
slide 8 is dollar per barrel. He explained it is a distribution
curve to recognize the frequency of events at a certain product
price and slide 8 depicts the highest point as $90 per barrel
which is where nost of the distribution | anded.

2: 05: 39 PM

MR. BARRON referred to slide 9 and stated that DNR ran the
stochastic nodel, Mnte Carlo technique, "tens of thousands" of
times and let the conputer generate possible results. He opined
that this is an inportant aspect to understand as there is an

unknown as to what the product price will be at any given point
in time, or production rate, or capital costs, or the opex which
is why distribution nodels are built. He noted that any of

these events can take place against each other at any point in
time which is why DNR perforns a Monte Carlo analysis to obtain
a range of results. Slide 9 is a probability distribution of
results, and this is roughly a tipping point project. Fifty
percent of the cases canme out to be positive at a fifteen
percent rate of return and fifty percent of the cases were not
profitable. He advised it was an interesting dilemma to work
through in ternms of whether it was the correct nodel to be using
as DNR should | ook at the type of conpany it was dealing with

He stated that DNR recogni zed the conmpany has a higher cost of
capital in that it is receiving private -equity funding

Hi storically, he offered, DNR has reviewed conpanies such as
ConocoPhi |l i ps Alaska, Inc., BP, Chevron Ol and Gas Exploration
and Devel opnent, which are internationally diversified portfolio
conpanies with worldw de standards and Caelus is basically a
single asset startup conpany which nust go to the private equity

market to receive funding for these projects. He highlighted
that it is a limted pool that can provide $1 billion for
activities in Al aska. In striving to be fair, DNR conmuni cated

with the Permanent Fund |Investnment G oup and inquired as to what
rate of return it would consider if it invested in this type of
project and the answer was sonewhere between 17-25 percent.

2:10: 02 PM

BUD COWM TTEE - 15- Decenber 2, 2014



MR. BARRON turned to slide 12 and stated it depicts the results
of DNR rerunning the economcs at 17.5 percent. Si xty-five
percent of the cases were not positive as when elevating the
requirenent for rate of return the failure rate increased, which
was expected but not as far as it went, he expressed. The nean
case was a negative expected nonetary value with only a few
cases positive, he noted. He indicated that when DNR reviewed
the results it considered that it was a private equity conpany,
with the project at the tipping point at 17.5 percent. He noted
that DNR recognized that [Torok] is a reservoir that is risky
and nore so than the conventional plays of Prudhoe Bay and
Kupar uk. He advised that DNR desired an opportunity to pronote

new drill techniques, and for the state to determne if the
techni ques could work, how well, and how the technol ogy could be
transferred. It is the intention of DNR to encourage the

devel opnment of this type of resource and, he noted, this is also
the sort of play as Badam, Meltwater [Participation Area], and
Tarn [Field]. He explained there are several plays like this
that have not been robustly positive and the conpanies have
struggled with them He stated DNR wanted to focus on a single
formation from the new developnent site and that the Caelus
application requested the Torok from ODS and Nuna. The
Department of Natural Resources concentrated on limting it to
the new devel opnment area and establishing clear m|estones the
conpany would be held to. It was not the intention of DNR to
adversely affect the Alaska Net Profit Share Lease (NPSL) System
benefits and DNR recognized that production, recovery and
product price were critical factors and, except for production

recovery and product price are conpletely out of the control of
the operator. He advised that the parties participated in
l engthy discussions in terns of options and alternatives,
ratcheting down and up on product price, sliding scales and
cl ean curves on product price in an attenpt to take issues the
operator was not in conplete control of but were drivers of the
econom cs, and they discussed a gross revenue product. He
opined that regarding a gross revenue product, DNR recognized
that if the conpany was technically successful the state did not
want to dimnish the state's ability to recover product if it
had high rates at low price. |In essence, he noted, if the state
only gave the conpany a product price royalty nodification the
conpany could enjoy low price robust production and gain the
royalty nodification. He stated that DNR structured [an
agr eenent | t hat if the conpany's technology worked and
production was high the state would also benefit as it would
truncate the tinme of which the conpany was under royalty
nodi fi cati on. He further stated that DNR wanted to blend the
bal ance of benefiting the state with elevated production and

BUD COWM TTEE - 16- Decenber 2, 2014



ri sk product price, which is how DNR determ ned the proposal of
t he gross revenue target.

2:14:21 PM

MR. BARRON stated that with regard to Senator G essel's earlier
guestion concerning how DNR arrived at the $1.25 billion figure
he referred the conmttee to slide 14 and described it as the
expected nonetary value at 17.5 percent and a $1.25 billion
gross revenue target. He pointed out that the nean is negative
$7.05 which denotes the project on a nean basis is negative
however, statistically it mght as well be zero. He expl ai ned

that DNR worked its way back from 2.5, 3.5 and worked backwards
down the scale to a gross revenue target at 17.5 percent which
was at a tipping point of value to the conpany. He opined that
the project is at a mean of negative $7.05, essentially zero and
any less than negative $7.05 and the project would be nore
negative, and any higher the state would |eave too nuch on the
table. The cost is essentially that the state forgo $44 nillion
in royalty to nove the project forward, he surm se and remarked
that DNR expects to receive anywhere from $1 billion to $1.7
billion value to the state in revenue taxes, etcetera. He
offered DNR s belief that as a privately equity funded conpany
the project would either not go forward or would be
significantly delayed wthout royalty nodification and noted
that caused DNR concern as it desires this sort of project nove
forward yet protect the state as robustly as possible.

2:17: 02 PM

MR. BARRON remarked that everything was on an econom c basis so
DNR tried to find the tipping point of the project in terns of

the gross revenue target. He referred to slide 16 and advi sed
it represents net present value to the state in its decision
making abilities. He presented the question that assuming the
project did not go forward or was delayed wthout royalty
nodi fication what would be the value to the state. He pointed
to the red bar on the axis which represents $44 mllion the

state would forgo under the current proposal, and the blue curve
represents no royalty nodification with a one- to five-year
del ay. He summarized that by not taking action today it would
cost the state nore noney in net present value than if the
project was delayed a year with the state |osing approximtely
$79 mllion. He surmised that on one hand the state is risking
$44 mllion but accelerating the developnent of the asset,
gaining and requiring hard mlestones for the conpany, and
requiring information transfer. On the other hand, the state

BUD COWM TTEE -17- Decenber 2, 2014



could delay a year with no royalty nodification and |ose nore
nmoney than by granting the royalty nodification, he further
surm sed.

2:18: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON noted he had previously reviewed a
figure of lost royalty of $75 nmillion and quiered how that
figure was determ ned.

MR. BARRON responded that in the prelimnary finding there was a
reduction of $75 mllion in royalty but with additional taxes
rolled onto that figure the state's total revenue loss is $44
mllion.

2:19: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if the state will receive $1.3 billion
in state revenue or whether it would be reduced by tax credits
and tax deducti ons.

MR BARRON stated that [$1.3 billion] net is the anount the
state expects to receive at the end of the day.

2:20: 29 PM

SENATOR DUNLEAVY questioned if it is possible to recover the
[$44 mllion] at the back end after the $1.25 billion gross
revenue i s net.

MR. BARRON responded to Senator Dunleavy's question by stating
that wthin robust negotiations DNR did not require [3$44
mllion] but it reduced the gross revenue target, which was
originally higher, and pushed it back to $1.25 billion. He
reiterated that DNR conpensated by pushing the gross revenue
target down to provide the state conpensation and accel erate the
time in which the state would regain its full royalty.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY surmised that [$44 mllion] never was recouped
[in the negotiations].

MR. BARRON answered in the affirmati ve.
2:22: 15 PM

MR. BARRON referred to slide 17 and opined that the royalty
nodification is in the best interests of the state and is a

BUD COWM TTEE - 18- Decenber 2, 2014



well -crafted royalty nodification to junp start a project. | t
offers the state inmediate developnment into new reserves as
del ays cost the state nore noney and the [royalty nodification]
is focused on the scope of a single formation from the new
devel opnment, he remarked. He said there are clear mlestones
and acknow edged that the legislature has an issue wth how to
ascertain conpanies are performng as the |egislature asked them

to perform thereby holding the conpanies to a fine Iine. He
noted it does not adversely affect the NPSLs so the benefit of
net profit leases do trigger in when reaching payout. He
further noted that the state gains $1.3 billion net present

val ue 3 percent discount which targets an "el usive" reservoir on
the North Slope and automatically triggers that 24 nonths after
first production wll be the transfer of technology to the
i ndustry [and public].

2:23: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON questioned if net profit share |eases
are unique to this unit, how it canme to be, and remarked that it
suggests the unit should have been a nore profitable place to do
busi ness.

MR. BARRON answered that net profit |eases are not unique to
this unit as there are several throughout the state, nostly in
the North Sl ope. He offered that the idea first cane about in
federal |eases with the idea there is a base royalty but once a
payout is reached the conpany pays nore back to the state. He
expl ained there was a balancing act between the state or the
royalty owner and conpanies in ternms of the uniqueness of NPSL
| eases. He explained that the |eases are used federally, and
several states use them and Al aska has perforned a few | ease
sales with those terns in them He further explained that the
terms are not often used and this [unit] happens to have sone
NPSLs.

2:25:38 PM

MR. BARRON responded to Representative Josephson that the
[prelimnary determination and finding] is in the public review
period. Subsequent to gathering conments and, barring a conment
or mssed issue that nust be addressed in the |anguage of the
agreenent, a final finding wll be witten for the DNR
conmi ssioner's signature, and upon signature that agreement is
conpl et ed. He added that DNR will offer background information
to the new admnistration as it goes through a transition
process.

BUD COWM TTEE -19- Decenber 2, 2014



2:27:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noted that nost state |eases are bid at 12.5
percent royalty, with sone at 16 percent, and this |l ease at 12.5
percent plus 30 percent profit share. He surm sed that the
state wuses the higher rate when it feels [the lease] is
potentially nore productive.

MR. BARRON answered that historically 12.5 percent royalty was
common throughout all donestic regines and explained that many
years ago the state recognized there were higher potential areas
on the North Slope and designated a l|line that above which the
royalties were 16.67 [percent]. He noted that those areas are
still 16.67 [percent] and all other areas are 12.5 percent. I n
a couple of the lease sales the idea was propagated and the
| ease terns included the net profit sharing conponent and, he
offered, in the last four |ease sales and a few years prior to

that the state noved away from the idea. He remarked that
current |leases comonly do not include a net profit share
because they are conplicated to adm nister. He pointed out that

Cael us's recent purchase of approxinmately 320,000 acres is the
third largest lease sale in terms of value in the state's
history for the North Sl ope. Caelus now nmust gather data, shoot
seismc, and review the analysis before it determ nes where to
put in its first exploration well which could be a dry hole. He
offered that exploration wells can cost over $80 mllion to
drill which is a large investnent on a conpany for a dry hole,
even though they do obtain data. He stated that DNR offers
conpetitive | ease sales but not with an understanding that it is
trying to inpose where DNR believes there wll be greater
production. Wen a conpany purchases a lease it may not have a
lot of information and, he said that the legislature created
royalty nodification statutes to assist conpanies, having
obtained additional information, an opportunity to request
assistance from the state. The structure of this agreenent is
sound in its approach to address many issues that bring benefits
to the state, he opined.

2:31:24 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARA qui ered whether it was a reflection of the
state's view that a field is nore prom sing when there is nore

than a 12.5 percent royalty.

2:31:35 PM

BUD COWM TTEE - 20- Decenber 2, 2014



MR. BARRON reiterated that DNR issues |eases w thout know edge
of a field being there or not and that the state drew a
demarcation line on the North Slope map stating that north of
that line is 16.67 [percent], and south is 12.5 percent royalty
with no idea of whether anything will be discovered at the tine
of the |ease sale.

2:32: 06 PM

SENATOR BI SHOP questioned whether the 320,000 acres were at 12.5
percent or 16.67 percent.

MR. FOLEY advised he believed all of the subject |eases Cael us
purchased are at 16.67 percent royalty, other than a single
di git anount being one-eighth royalty.

MR. BARRON confirnmed that M. Foley was correct.
2:33:26 PM

MR. BARRON replied to Chair MacKi nnon that public comment cutoff
i s Decenber 12, 2014.

2:33:53 PM

CHAI R MACKI NNON paraphrased AS 38.05.180(j)(1)(B) as follows:
"Modification is necessary to prolong econonmic life of an oil or
gas field or pool because w thout nodification future production
is not economically feasible, and royalty nodification nust be
in the best interests of the state.”

MR. BARRON agreed with both Chair McKinnon's characterizations
[of the statute] and that his testinony is DNRs effort to
explain to the general public and the legislature the steps
taken to protect the state's interests.

2:34:37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA advi sed that on Novenber 27, [2014], Page 2,
Comm ssioner Balash was quoted in the Al aska D spatch News as

saying "What | found, they are expecting sone pretty significant
returns on the investnents they make and so ultimately that was
one of the things | took into account.” Representative Gara

guestioned why he should be conforted that Conm ssioner Balash
was | ooking at sonething that would produce significant returns
for [Cael us].

BUD COWM TTEE -21- Decenber 2, 2014



2:35:52 PM

MR. BARRON noted that he could only answer Representative Gara's
guestion in that this will be the first private equity funded
project on the North Slope and possibly in Alaska for oil and
gas. In the event an arrangenent can be structured for royalty
nodi fication that wll allow these kinds of private equity
projects to cone into the state, he noted, it would be a
positive step forward. He further noted that it is inportant
for the people of Alaska to grasp the nature of the conpanies
now comng into the state, such as: Caelus, Hilcorp, Brooks
Range, 70 & 148 LLC, Arnstrong, Royals, Furie, BlueCrest, Eni
and Repsol, with the last two conpanies to a different degree

He described conpanies that require private equity funding as
not "wldly" diversified corporations. In structuring an
agreenment that does not onerously dimnish value to the state
yet, he remarked, denonstrates to the industry and private
equity sector that the state |looking at these projects
positively could play into |large dividends for the state and for
future players to develop its projects through private equity.
He explained that private equity players hold a great deal of
acreage in the state for exploration activities and surmsed it
is inportant these conpanies are successful so the state can
continue the devel opnment of its natural resources.

2:38:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if M. Barron disagreed with Dr.
Goldsmith's analysis that fields |ike Nuna post-2002 production
units will generate in production taxes a negative or near zero
net present value to the state.

MR. BARRON advi sed he has no opinion.
2:38:54 PM

MR. BARRON agreed that Chair McKinnon's depiction of slide 15
was fair in that it depicts that a delay would be nore costly to
the state as conpared to the inpact of the royalty nodification
and that it would shorten the overall economc life of the
proj ect .

2:39:35 PM
CHAI R MACKI NNON requested verification that M. Barron has tried

t hrough negotiations to ascertain that Al aska receive production
timely by requiring the start of the installation of the

BUD COW TTEE -22- Decenber 2, 2014



facilities by 12/31/15, and production nust have started by no
| ater than 3/31/17.

MR. BARRON answered that Chair MacKi nnon was correct.

2:40: 13 PM

SENATOR BI SHOP surmised that from the state's standpoint there
would be a $1.3 billion net profit back to the state with a $44
mllion investnent.

MR. BARRON agreed with Senator Bishop.

MR. BARRON agreed with Senator Bishop that it is a rounding
"error" to get to $1.3 billion.

2:41: 20 PM

The commttee took a brief at-ease.

2:42: 07 PM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further Dbusiness before the conmttee, the

Legi sl ative Budget and Audit Committee neeting was adjourned at
2:42 p. m

BUD COWM TTEE - 23- Decenber 2, 2014



